
 

 

Wake County Board of Commissioners 

Human Services Committee 

October 12th, 2016 

10 a.m. 

2800 Wake County Justice Center 

 
Commissioners Present:  

James West, Committee Chair  

Sig Hutchinson, Committee Vice-Chair 

 

Wake County Staff Present: David Ellis, Deputy County Manager; Regina Petteway, 

Human Services Director; Denise Foreman, Assistant to the County Manager; Ken 

Murphy, Assistant County Attorney; Katherine Williams, Wake County Cooperative 

Extension Director; Andy Kuhn, Executive Assistant to the Board; Elizabeth Brandt, 

Communications; Yvonne Gilyard, Deputy Clerk to the Board; and Johnna Rogers, 

Deputy County Manager 

 

Meeting Called to Order 

Chairman West called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m.  

 

There was not a quorum present, so approval of the minutes was foregone.  

 

Ms. Denise Foreman, Assistant to the County Manager, shared the Community Health 

and Social and Economic Vitality Board Goals.  

 

Ms. Foreman said there will be a Board strategic planning session in November that will 

include a facilitator to assist with goal alignment among the objectives.  

 

She shared the Board Goals and Objectives 

 

• Approved by the Board November 2015  

• 9 Goal Areas to track and monitor progress of the Board Goals 

• Plan to update and revise goals annually 

• 2016 updating process to begin through work in committees 

• Desired outcome:  update 2017 goals in order for departments to consider as 

they develop FY2018 budget requests 

 

She shared the Board Goals Committee Work.  

 

• Focus on outcomes – what are we trying to achieve? 

• Review progress on goals 



 

 

• Determine if goal / objective/initiative: 

• Has been Achieved / “Done”? 

• If the goal still applicable? 

• Need to be continued / modified? 

• Revise goal wording?   

• Revise / add objectives and/or initiatives?   

 

Ms. Regina Petteway, Human Services Director, shared the Community Health Goal.  

 

Goal:  Promote an effective behavioral and physical health system of care and 

practices that benefits all residents. 

 

Ms. Foreman shared Objective 1.1. 

 

 
 

She shared Objective 1.2 

 



 

 

 
 

She shared Objective 1.3 

 

 
 

Commissioner Hutchinson joined the meeting at 10:16 a.m. 

 

Ms. Foreman shared Objective 1.4. 

 



 

 

 
 

She shared Objective 1.5. 

 

 
 

She shared Objective 1.6. 



 

 

 
 

Commissioner Hutchinson asked how the CJLeads/Alpha data will be shared among 

multiple Wake County agencies. Ms. Foreman said that criminal justice teams are 

determining what information should be shared in order to assist those in mental health 

diversion teams. Commissioner Hutchinson asked if emergency room hospitals would 

have access to the shared data. Ms. Foreman said this data would not be shared, but it 

is a possibility to explore.  

 

Ms. Foreman asked for review of Objective 1.  

 

• Focus on outcomes – what are we trying to achieve? 

 - What will success look like? 

 - Can we measure it? 

• What objectives and initiatives will help us achieve the desired outcomes? 

• Determine if objective/initiative: 

• Has been Achieved / “Done”? 

• Is still applicable? 

• Needs to be continued / modified? 

• Is a new objective/initiative needed? 

 

Commissioner West asked how linkage between partner agencies and those persons 

who enter the behavioral health system will be met. He said that gaps exist and that 

there should be efforts to connect the systems.  

 



 

 

There was discussion of how case managers and service providers communicate and 

how data is shared.  

 

Commissioner Hutchinson said that service delivery models need to be examined and 

that there are national models that can increase Wake County’s ability to diagnose and 

manage patients. Ms. Petteway asked if there should be an initiative created to examine 

new service delivery models. He said that building a sustainable WakeBrook should be 

an initiative and that all partners need to be at the table to ensure its success. He also 

said that embedding supportive housing into the objectives is needed in order to 

address supporting the whole person. Ms. Foreman said community supports can 

include housing because this links to existing initiatives. Commissioner Hutchinson said 

that suspension versus cancellation of Medicaid benefits requires a discussion. He said 

that cancellation of Medicaid and its prevention should be addressed in the initiatives. 

He said that coordination of the 211 system and the proposed System of Care could 

improve access and accomplish a goal of pushing out services while improving 

efficiency and cutting costs.  

 

There was discussion about provider networks and information sharing that would 

enable connection via the 211 system.  

 

There was discussion of assessment of the existing 211 system and its strategic 

position to provide service integration and collaboration.  

 

Commissioner West asked how operational management and objectives are transferred 

to the citizens. Ms. Katherine Williams, Wake County Cooperative Extension Director, 

said there are outcomes built into citizen implementation. Ms. Petteway said 

instructional strategies are created and built into the programs to ensure citizens can 

access the services.  

 

Commissioner Hutchinson said that information platforms need objectives that allow 

safety net providers to effectively manage and implement their programs. He said that 

common platforms allow for improved data sharing. Ms. Petteway said tracking of 

medical information included in another goal could be included into the community 

health initiatives.   

 

Ms. Foreman summarized thoughts by saying that there are proposals for:  

 Revision of Objective 1.2 to include WakeBrook operations.  

 Adjust 1.3 for integration of services and support services for Wake Directors.  

 Telemedicine exploration    

 Address obstacles regarding Medicaid for incarcerated individuals  



 

 

 

Ms. Petteway shared Objective 2.1 

 

 
 

She shared Objective 2.2 

 

 
 

Ms. Williams said a comprehensive strategy for food systems was necessary to achieve 

impact.  



 

 

 

Commissioner Hutchinson suggested that community gardens be included in the 

initiatives.  

 

Ms. Petteway shared Objective 2.3 

 

 
 

Commissioner Hutchinson said that the entire community needs to be served by the 

policies in place. He said that impact of the entire community should be examined 

moving forward. Commissioner West asked if this would detract from targeting of at-risk 

neighborhoods.  

 

There was discussion of creation of a task force that will address population health in a 

broader scope.  

 

Mr. David Ellis, Deputy County Manager, asked if Objective 2.1 and 2.2 can become 

more outcome focused. Commissioner Hutchinson said that inclusion of transit into 

initiatives will allow for outcome generation in the initiatives and measurement moving 

forward.  

 

There was discussion of definitions of success within the objectives.  

 

Ms. Petteway shared Objective 2.4 

 



 

 

 
 

She shared Objective 2.5 

 

 
 

Commissioner West said that ensuring work is tangible and felt by all involved is 

important to continue strategic growth. He said that the process can be made stronger 

by improving reporting and applying a systems approach.  

 



 

 

Mr. Ellis said that community embedding is a strategic goal moving forward and that 

improvements over time need to be measured and publicized.  

 

There was discussion of priority indicators and which ones should be included in the 

Community Health Needs Assessment.  

 

Commissioner Hutchinson said that combining Objective 2.5 and 2.6 is a good idea and 

that adding the language, “supports building a culture of health”,  achieves higher level 

strategies.  

 

Ms. Petteway shared Objective 2.6 

 

 
 

She shared Objective 2.7 

 

Commissioner West said that some basic objectives need to be achieved prior to 

pushing ultimate aims for bettering community health.  



 

 

 
 

Ms. Petteway summarized suggestions for augmentation of objectives: 

 

 2.1 inclusion of transit 

 2.2 Local healthy food 

 2.3 health and all policies 

 2.4 improved access to health services, inclusion of school aged populations 

 Combine 2.5 and 2.6 and emphasize better partnerships and reporting 

 2.7 language of population health task force 

 Share data between populations and mental health providers 

Mr. Ellis said inclusion of the Opioid/Tobacco/Gonorrhea issues facing the county within 
the initiatives is still needed. Ms. Petteway agreed saying addition of these priorities is 
necessary.   
 

Ms. Petteway shared the goals for Social and Economic Vitality. 

 



 

 

 
 

Ms. Williams shared Objectives 2.1 and 2.2  

 

 
 

There was discussion of economic strength and the mapping of community block group 

vulnerability data.  

 



 

 

Commissioner West said identification of the targeted groups is important and should 

influence policy.  

 

There was discussion of how to operationalize the pilot program. 

 

There was discussion of how to incorporate strategies of Human Capital Development 

into the pilot program and adding an engagement piece.  

 

 
 

Ms. Petteway shared Objective 2.3.  



 

 

 
 

She shared Objective 2.4 

 

 
 

She shared Objective 3.1. 

 

 



 

 

 
 

She shared Objective 3.2  

 

 
 

Ms. Foreman said Objective 3.2 and 2.2 could be combined.  

Ms. Williams said incorporating food security strategies could also be included in the 

combined objective.  



 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

Ms. Foreman said revisions to align task force goals will be made.  

 

Ms. Petteway said that behavioral health supports related to housing should also be 

noted within the objectives.  



 

 

 

Commissioner West said there are great opportunities to achieve goals with increased 

community engagement through advisory groups and individual empowerment.  

 

Next Steps 

Ms. Foreman said that staff will create a revised set of objectives. She said this will be 

sent via email to the committee.  She said that after review these will be sent to the full 

Board during the Board of Commissioners Retreat.  

 

Adjourn 

Commissioner West concluded the meeting at 12:00 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Andy Kuhn 
Executive Assistant to the Board of Commissioners 
 
 


